
Please ask for  Helen McAleer DDI (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AND PROJECTS 
SUB-COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 28th February, 2012 at 9.30 am 

Venue - Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth 
House, Dereham NR19 1EE 

 
 

 

Members of the Sub-Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to the Sub-Committee. 

 
 

Members of the Sub-Committee 
  
Mr W.H.C. Smith (Chairman)  
Mr S. Askew 
 

Mr A.C. Stasiak 
 

 

 
 
 

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 

REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONES    

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Monday, 20 February 2012  
 

Public Document Pack



 
 



Business Improvement and Projects Sub-Committee 
28 February 2012 

 

 

 

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 3 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2012.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive any apologies for absence.    
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To consider any urgent business.   
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have in 
any of the following items on the agenda. The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest.  
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members who wish to address the meeting.  
 

 

6. INVESTMENT IN THE ICT INFRASTRUCTURE IN DESK TOP PROVISION 
AND SOFTWARE SOLUTION WITHIN PLANNING AND BUILDING 
CONTROL  

4 - 13 

 Report of the Assistant Director of Commissioning.  
 

 

 



 
 
 

 

1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AND PROJECTS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 11 October 2011 at 9.30 am in 
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham NR19 1EE 

 
PRESENT  
Mr W.H.C. Smith (Chairman) 
 

Mr A.C. Stasiak 
 

 
Also Present  
Mr S.G. Bambridge 
 

Mr P.J. Duigan 
 

 
In Attendance  
Margaret Bailey - Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury 
Brian Cox - IT Consultant 
Kevin Rump - ICT Project Manager 
Helen McAleer - Senior Committee Officer 
Simon Stubbs - ICT Project Manager 
Ben Wood - Business Development Manager 

 
 
 Action By 

73/10 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)   

  

 The following points were noted: 
 

§ Minute No 64/11 – Testing of the mobile working equipment was 
going well.  A number of records needed to be deleted and once 
that was complete, field testing would take place.  A progress 
report on mobile working would be presented to the Sub-
Committee in the New Year. 

§ Minute No 65/11 – The Chairman requested further information on 
preparations for the Single Benefit.  The IT Consultant advised 
that only draft proposals had been received so far and when more 
details were available he would provide an update.    
With regard to Members’ training on WebEx and Video 
Conferencing, no date had yet been set but the Training Manager 
would be arranging both group and individual sessions. 
Further enquiries were being made to clarify whether Skype could 
meet GCSx security requirements. 

 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 30 August 2011 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Kevin 
Rump  

74/10 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)   

  

 Apologies for absence had been received from Mr S Askew.  
 

 

75/10 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 3)   

  

 None.   

Agenda Item 1

1



Business Improvement and Projects Sub-Committee 
11 October 2011 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
 

76/10 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (AGENDA ITEM 4)   

  

 None.  
 

 

77/10 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA 
ITEM 5)  

 

  

 Mr P Duigan was in attendance. 
 
Mr G Bambridge arrived during Agenda Item 6.  
 

 

78/10 CAPITAL PROGRAMME (AGENDA ITEM 6)   

  

 The Chairman expressed concerns about the number of projects with nil 
spend.  He wanted to know why they had not started. 
 
The Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury explained that it was a mid-
quarter report and there was likely to be much more information at the 
next meeting which would receive the full quarter update. 
 
The ICT Project Manager advised that the Disaster Recovery project had 
a long lead-in time and most items were now on order. 
 
The Chairman asked if there was sufficient budget to cover the additional 
project at Agenda Item 9 as well as those on the list and was advised that 
there was.  All the planned projects were funded.  Half of the money from 
the IT Strategy which had been carried over could be used and the rest 
would cover the refresh programme. 
 
The IT Consultant advised that the IT Strategy would be presented to 
CMT for agreement.  It would then be possible to list the programmes and 
projects to support the Strategy. 
 
The Business Development Manager acknowledged that concerns had 
been raised about priorities but said that now that the Corporate Plan had 
been agreed it provided clarity of direction and business plans could be 
aligned.   
 
The Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury reiterated that there would 
be more information in the next report and that she would add a notes 
column to provide a status update from Service Managers.  
 

 

79/10 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC (AGENDA ITEM 7)   

  

 RESOLVED that under Section 100(A) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involved 
the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.  
 

 

80/10 PERFORMANCE PLUS SYSTEM (FOR INFORMATION)(AGENDA 
ITEM 8)  

 

  

 The Chairman noted that the report was for information only but asked  

2



Business Improvement and Projects Sub-Committee 
11 October 2011 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

 
which budget the funding had come from.  The Senior Accountant Capital 
and Treasury advised that the costs had been covered by the Core ICT 
Revenue budget and the Performance budget. 
 
Mr Stasiak advised that the rationale behind the change was to provide a 
more user friendly system which enabled quick and easy access to data.  
There were also financial advantages. 
 
The report was noted.  
 

81/10 VOIP SYSTEM (AGENDA ITEM 9)   

  

 The ICT Project Manager explained the reasons behind the request to 
change the Council’s telephony system.  The current system was 
approaching the end of its useful life and replacement parts were difficult 
to source.  The new system would provide more flexibility and greater 
connectivity. 
 
All costs for introducing the new system had been included in the report 
and approval of the budget would not compromise other projects. 
 
Members were provided with details of the new system’s capabilities.  It 
would reduce the risk of in-house failure and enhance Disaster Recovery. 
 
It was confirmed that there would be some revenue costs but they would 
be off-set by the savings made. 
 
Options 
 

(1) To keep the current system 
(2) To implement a Mitel based VoIP system in place of the 

existing system 
(3) To replace the existing system with a new Siemens VoIP 

solution 
 
Reasons for Recommendation 
 
Option 2 would provide a range of improvements listed in the report. 
 

RESOLVED to approve Option 2, to migrate the existing 
telephony users at Elizabeth House onto the Mitel VoIP telephony 
system.  
 

 

82/10 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 10)   

  

 The arrangements for the next meeting on 22 November 2011 were 
noted.  

 

 
 
The meeting closed at 10.08 am 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

3



   

Application Form

For New Projects and Funding 
Through the Business Improvement Sub-Committee

Document: New Projects and Funding  
Issue Date: 08/10/2010  
Version: Final  
Version Number: 6.0

Agenda Item 6

4



APPLICATION FORM     BISC New Projects and Funding 

New Project Name: To invest in the ICT infrastructure in desk top provision and 
software solution within Planning and Building Control. 

Project Type: ICT hardware desk top refresh and software upgrade 

Supplier (if applicable): Split between ICT section and Oceala 

Proposed Use: To upgrade the current desktop provision to assist mobile and 
home working 

Funding Source: Capital budget- previously agreed at Full council 

Document Author: Phil Adams 

Author Contact Tel No: 07713003330

Author’s Position Held: Building Control & Environmental health manager 

Service: Planning and Building Control 

Date Submitted: 17th February 2012 

If you require help with completing this application form please refer to the 
guidelines at the end of the document.

Please also refer to the Policy for  ICT or BI Projects. 
(Also found at the end of this Document)

5



Section A - Use 
Please describe what it is you are applying for? 

A.1

We are applying for the release of capital funding previously agreed at Full council for 
developing the planning and building control service at Breckland to enable greater customer 
and service delivery to be experienced with investment in desk top provision and software 
upgrades.

What business problems and opportunities are addressed by the proposed project? 

A.2

The service currently doesn’t engage in a modern platform with its customers, There are many 
restriction within the current set up from the desk top provision which is limiting staff to there 
desks instead of mobile working capabilities and the benefits this brings, in terms of customer 
engagement.

There has not been any investment in the software provision that the council owns for a 
number of years and has fallen behind on the benefits that the new upgraded modules will 
provide and thereby restricting the capabilities of the staff to provide the service the council 
expects from the planning and building control service.  

The current system those not allow mobile working with the officers to carryout their daily tasks 
this limits the officer in the amount of information they can carry, the upgrade will enable them 
to work in this modern platform, upload photos, take evidence, provide guidance and advise on 
changes the customer wishes to make, thereby providing the customer with a one stop solution 
on site. 

Who will be using the systems and/or new processes and at which location? 

A.3

The new provision will enable customers, agent, builders, members and staff to have greater 
accessibilty with system, with large number of module upgrades within the operating system,. 

The location for most of the system will be Derehamm howevere the system will enable all 
parties to access the system by the web site thereby access is any where 

What are the likely or possible changes in working practices, which will result from the 
introduction of the proposed system/process? 

A.4

• Online Enforcements. 
• Building control Online submissions. 
• On line pre application advice booking 
• Mobile building control solution. 
• Mobile enforcment solution. 
• Mobile planning solution. 
• GIS interface integration. 
• Competent persons matching. 
• Report writer. 
• Planning officer module. 
• Building control officer module. 
• Email consultation Hub. 
• Document management system for Building control 

• Document management system for Enforcement. 

• Financial interface and intergation 

6



Section B – High Level Benefit Analysis 
Please list any expected benefits, particularly those with productivity, efficiency and 
cashable gains. 

B.1

• Upgraded web site interaction 
• On line Enforcements. 
• Planning officer module 
• Building control officer module 
• Planning manager module 
• Building control manager module 
• Document management solution 

• Q & A report module 

Please list any expected benefits, particularly those with improvements in accessing 
information for customers, staff, stakeholders, and members. 

B.2

• Mobile technology 

• Upgraded web site interaction 

• On line Enforcements. 

• Document management solution 

• Q & A report module 

• On line Pre Application advice booking 

• Building control On line submissions 

How does the project deliver improved monitoring for performance (e.g. National 
Indicators)

B.3

• Planning officer module 
• Building control officer module 
• Planning manager module 
• Building control manager module 
• Document management solution 

• Q & A report module. 

These modules will enable both managers to assess the current performace of there teams 
and enable greater sign off provision within the system. 

Via the Q & A report module the service can generate there own reports without the need for 
thre software providers assistance thereby reducing the cost of reports.  

By bring in the document system across the service this will enable our customer , agents and 
members to review details of any planning or building control application at the touch of a 
mouse in the comfort of there home 

Section C – Relationship to the Corporate Business Plan 
Please list and define known relationships to Corporate Business Plan.

C.1

To develop stronger communities-  
• by reducing bureaucracy and the time taken to deal with applications. 

To be an Entrepreneurial council-
• Improving productivity and deliver value for money,

7



• developing new models for service delivery to generate sustainable efficiency savings,  
• Manage carbon reduction. 
• Assess the service and function by being delivered in a different way to reduce customer 
needs and there costs 

• Reducing red tape and bureaucracy by simplifying how the service is delivered. 

Section D – Risk Assessment 
How will the system enable better management of risks identified in the Council’s Risk 
Register?  Please provide comprehensive list. 

D.1
Data will be stored on the council ICT servers with their built in backup facilities , thereby 
reducing the risk of lost data. 

Accountability of data being release or not delivered on time to customer, consultees and 
members of public 

How will additional risks introduced during or after the project be managed? 

D.2 There is a greater reliance on the ICT capabilities and the infrastructure around this, however, 
backup facilities and shared equipment will enable resilience within the service 

What is the risk of doing nothing? 

D.3

The current service provided by the planning and building control service is not customer 
focused and  thereby not doing nothing will continue in that vain, however these issues have 
been raised by a number of members.  

There is a greater risk that our reputation by customer could be affected in the long run, there 
is also the potential lose of business to the building control service because of its inability to 
receive submission electronically 

Section E – Other Reference Sites 
What other reference site is the system/process currently in use?  Please provide a list 
of references and contact details (e.g.: names, telephone numbers and/or e-mail 
addresses).E.1

South Holland DC Planning and Building Control service 

Section F – Alternatives Investigated 
What alternatives have been considered in reaching this recommendation? Please list. 

F.1
This solution has been agreed with all parties concerned including the contract monitoring 
board

Please explain for each option why these are not the preferred solutions? 

F.2
As explained above 

F.3
Has consideration been given to the underlying service processes before considering 
an ICT solution? Please explain giving detail. 

8



This solution is about the way we deliver the service in a modern accessible platform to the 
benefit of all parties from members, customers, agents and staff, to facilitate this option 
requires an ICT solution 

Section G – Costs & Support 
Please give an indication of expected overall project costs (capital & revenue)? 

G.1

Capital cost will be. 
Software module upgrades on all stated previously £51,750.00. 
Hardware provision for refresh desk top with mobile technology provided £58,111.47 

Revenues cost will be £4,500.00 

Please indicate the expected source of funding? (e.g. Corporate, Service, ICT)
G.2

Capital Programme 

Who will provide annual maintenance and support? 

G.3
Ocella for software solution as part of there on-going support package. 

ICT hardware will be as part of the current in service support 

Will IT be required to provide support for the project and the ongoing support? 
G.4

As above 

Please indicate how you intend to resource the project? 

G.5 Resourcing of time will be from the existing pool of staff in both Planning and building control 
service, the planning and building control management team, Ocella and the ICT work program 

Please indicate who will be sponsoring the project? 

G.6 Paul Jackson- Planning manager 

Phil Adams- Building Control manager 

Will the project impact on any other Service? Explain how?  
G.7

None

Section H – Impact on External Parties 
Please provide details on any potential impact on external agencies & partners which 
the new process/system is likely to affect.  

H.1 The new system will enhance their experience with working with Breckland’s planning and 
building control service, by having greater access to information, quicker delivery times and 
efficient response facilities and no paperwork, thereby reducing cost on them in terms of staff 
and resources 

Please indicate where the project is required due to Government targets or Legal 
obligation? If yes, how and what are the timescales for compliance? 

H.2

None except for providing our service in an electronic facility 

Section I – Training 

9



Please provide any training/skills transfer information? 
I.1

Training will be provided by Ocella as part of the information and new software packages  

Please explain how training will impact your current operation and workload. 

I.2
It is planned that training will be carried out at desktops and therefore keeping interruptions to a 
limit, It is planned that operational their will be minimal disruption to the operation of the 
service, however we can only mitigate these risk but can’t guarantee disruption, especially with 
this major software and hardware transfer 

Note: Sections J,K to be completed by BIT. 

Section J - Scoring 
Project Score Programme Rank 

J.1 This project is not being run by the 
BITeam

Section K – Comments 
ICT and Customer Manager 

K.1

ICT Operation Manager 
K.2

Business Development Team 
K.3

Performance, Procurement & Value for Money 

K.4

Ocella are our current software provider, the option to move to a new provider under a 
procurement exercise would be more costly, as Ocella are a proven provider of these 
technology it is business sensible to maintain that working relationship. 
We are satisfied that the package will deliver the business objective as this has been 
demonstrated by its current performance at South Holland, ocella have given a very good 
package and discounted due to the large scale uptake. 

The hardware desktop provision has been costed in line with the councils ICT provision and 
procurement processes 

Finance
K.5

Service Manager (if not the applicant)K.6

This development will enhance the service delivery we offer to all parties and is a large step 
forward in the way we operate and deliver the service, Capita have invested in this project. 

Internal Checks 
Ref:

1 Completed Form 

2 Service Manager Approval 

3 ICT Checked 

4 Steria Checked 

10



5 BIT Checked 

6 Performance, Procurement & Value for Money Check 

7 Finance Checked 

8 Service Manager Checked 

9 Application Verified 

11



PROFORMA B 

This PB is valid for 3 months from PB 
date 

If this PB is not longer required 
please advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original 
report it may invalidate this document, it 
must be reviewed by Finance. 

20/02/2012 Page 1 of 2 D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2
\2\3\AI00015322\$p5b3ekfp.doc 

 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Margaret Bailey (Senior Accountant – Capital and Treasury) 
 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  Planning and Building Control ICT 
REPORT DATE: 28th February 2012 Business Improvement Sub-Committee  
 
 
 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Capital      
Software    

51,750 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 
Hardware 
 
Funded from 
approved capital 
programme 

  
58,112 

 
(109,862) 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

Total new Capital  0 0 0 0 
Revenue       
Additional revenue   4,500 3,500 2,,500 
Funded from 
existing planning 
revenue  budgets 

   
(4,500) 

 
(3,500) 

 
(2,500) 

      
Total new revenue                     0                  0                 0  

Total Capital + 
Revenue 

 0 0 0 0 

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
   Business Improvement 

Sub Committee  

28/02/2012 

 
Financial Services Comments 
This project is part of the approved capital programme subject to release of funding by 
the Business Improvement Sub-Committee.  A budget of £128,110 is available for 
release.  New software and hardware assets will be created as a result of this spend and 
the Planning and Building Control Manager has confirmed that only £109,862 of the 
earmarked funding is required leaving £18,248 to be returned to the central capital pot. 
 
The report indicates that additional revenue funding of £4,500 in 2013/14 and £3,500 in 
2014/15 is required.  It is hoped that these costs will reduce as savings in printing and 
post reduce but this is not certain and the application indicates additional costs will be 
incurred initially.   

12



PROFORMA B 

This PB is valid for 3 months from PB 
date 

If this PB is not longer required 
please advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original 
report it may invalidate this document, it 
must be reviewed by Finance. 

20/02/2012 Page 2 of 2 D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2
\2\3\AI00015322\$p5b3ekfp.doc 

 

There is no funding available for additional revenue costs and it is therefore 
assumed that costs will be funded from savings elsewhere in the Planning and 
Building Control budgets. 
 

To comply with the governance arrangements for BISC, milestones should be agreed for 
when reports are received.  Therefore if Members agree release of funding it should be 
subject to agreeing when the following reports will be received: 

• Progress reports  
• Project end report 
• Post project review 

 
Financial Risk 
This proforma comments on available revenue and capital and highlights that whilst the 
project requires additional revenue, there is none available.   
 
Separate ICT comment is required to confirm that the project is appropriate and 
deliverable and the procurement arrangements need confirming to ensure that there is 
no breach of Council standing orders 
 
Therefore if members approve this project it should be subject to noting the 
position on revenue funding, agreeing timelines for receipt of the governance 
reports above and separate comment from ICT and procurement. 
 
 
 
 

13


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Investment in the ICT infrastructure in desk top provision and software solution within Planning and Building Control
	B Bisc 28-2-2012 planning and Building control ICT


